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LS CASE NO. 173 PREFILING CONFERENCE

BEFORE THE ARIZONA POWER PLANT

AND TRANSMISSION LINE SITING COMMITTEE

IN THE MATTER OF THE APPLICATION OF
SOUTHLINE TRANSMISSION, L.L.C., IN
CONFORMANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF
ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 40-360, ET
SEQ., FOR A CERTIFICATE OF
ENVIRONMENTAL COMPATIBILITY
AUTHORIZING CONSTRUCTION OF THE
NON-WAPA-OWNED ARIZONA PORTIONS OF
THE SOUTHLINE TRANSMISSION PROJECT,
INCLUDING ANEW APPROXIMATELY 66-MILE
345-KVTRANSMISSION LINE IN COCHISE
COUNTY FROM THE ARIZONA-NEW MEXICO
BORDER TO THE PROPOSED SOUTHLINE
APACHE SUBSTATION, THE ASSOCIATED
FACILITIES TO CONNECT THE SOUTHLINE
APACHE SUBSTATION TO THE ADJACENT
AEPCO APACHE SUBSTATION, AND
APPROXIMATELY 5 MILES OF NEW138-KV
AND 230-KV TRANSMISSION LINES AND
ASSOCIATED FACILITIES TO CONNECT THE
EXISTING PANTANO, VAIL, DEMOSS
PETRIE, AND TORTOLITA SUBSTATIONS TO
THE UPGRADED WAPA-OWNED 230-KV
APACHE-TUCSON AND TUCSON-SAGUARO
TRANSMISSION LINES IN PIMA AND PINAL
COUNTIES.

At: Phoenix, Arizona
Date: November 14, 2025
Filed: November 18, 2025
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

NO. DESCRIPTION

=

w

1

Project Map
Proposed Notice of Hearing Sign
Map of Notice of Hearing Sign Locations

Proposed Notice of Hearing
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before the
Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
Committee, commencing at 11:01 a.m. on November 14, 2025,

with all participants appearing via videoconference.

BEFORE: Adam Stafford, Chairman

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

Meghan H. Grabel

Elias Ancharski

Timothy Sabo

OSBORN MALEDON

2929 North Central Avenue
21lst Floor

Phoenix, Arizona 85012

ALSO PRESENT:

Isaac Phillips, Grid United

Doug Patterson, Black Forest Partners
Colin Agner, SWCA

Cara Bellavia, Grid United

Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Stafford

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

CHMN STAFFORD: Let's go on the record.

Now is the time set for the prefiling
conference in Case No. L-00000AAA-16-0370-00173, or linme
siting case 173.

Let's start with appearances by the
applicant.

MS. GRABEL: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
Meghan Grabel from Osborn Maledon on behalf of applicant
South -- Southline -- I almost said Southwest --
Southline Transmission Project. With me from my office
are my colleagues Elias Ancharski who'll be assisting
just up until the hearing and Mr. Timothy Sabo who will
be assisting at the hearing. Mr. Ancharski is expecting
his second.

With us from the applicant are Doug
Patterson from Black Forest Partners. Cara Bellavia
joined us from Grid United. Isaac Phillips from Grid
United. And Colin Agner from SWCA.

CHMN STAFFORD: Thank you. Now, this is a
motion to amend. You filed your motion September 19 of
this year, and it's scheduled for the Commission open
meeting on the 19th of this month, next week. TI expect
that we'll have the -- I've seen the Staff order. It
looks like there's five requests by the applicant, two of
which, the last two, which they plan to refer to the

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

committee.

Is that correct?

MS. GRABEL: That is all correct, yes. And
it is on the consent agenda. We expect it to go through
pretty easily. We hope, anyway.

CHMN STAFFORD: Yes, that's a good
indication. And so I expect they expect the Decision to
be filed by November 217

MS. GRABEL: We expect the file date
amendment to be the application by November 21, yes.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And then you have a
number of prehearing exhibits, four of them?

MS. GRABEL: We do. We have four. I can
identify them now.

The first is the map of the project.

The second is the proposed -- and when I
say "the project," by the way, it's not the entire
Southline Transmission Project but the portion of the
Southline Transmission Project for which we are seeking
the CEC in this case -- this amendment, rather.

The second is a proposed notice of hearing
sign.

The third is a map of where we intend to
place the notice of hearing signs.

And the final one is our proposed notice of

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

hearing.

CHMN STAFFORD: All right. Prehearing
Exhibits 1 through 4 are admitted.

(Exhibits 1 through 4 were admitted.)

CHMN STAFFORD: There were a number of
intervenors in the prior case, were there not?

MS. GRABEL: There were.

CHMN STAFFORD: Did they -- have they
received notice of this?

MS. GRABEL: They have, yes. They received
notice both because of one of the conditions of the
original CEC that required notification to the wvarious
stakeholders if we filed for an extension of the term,
which we have; and then, of course, notice in the normal
course of the outreach that we're doing for open houses
and things for the new CEC from Apache to Vail.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Now, do you know if
they intend to participate in the hearing?

MS. GRABEL: At present, we don't believe
any of those intend to intervene. We think that there's
a likelihood that Tucson Electric Power Company will
intervene because their interest in the Vail to Tortolita
section of this project are affected by some of the
amendments to the conditions. So we expect that Megan
Hill will likely make an appearance on their behalf.

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. All right. Now, we
received the draft notice of hearing. What are the
intended publication dates and publications?

MS. GRABEL: So the ones that are required
to provided by the statute are the Daily Territorial,
which is a newspaper of general circulation in Pima
County, and the Herald Review, which is a newspaper of
general circulation in Cochise County. Those are the two
counties that are affected by this project.

We are able to get them published twice
within the 10 days after filing the application, but this
case, like in the last one, it unfortunately requires us
to have the notice of hearing --

THE COURT REPORTER: I'm sorry. Meghan,
you're cutting out. Sorry.

MS. GRABEL: Sorry about that. Do you need
me to repeat?

CHMN STAFFORD: Yes, please.

MS. GRABEL: So we have the Daily
Territorial, which is the newspaper of general
circulation in Pima County. We have the Herald Review,
which is a newspaper of general circulation in Cochise
County. And those are the two counties that span this
project -- this project spans.

Unfortunately, like the last case we did,

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

the publication -- the day -- Daily Territorial --

THE COURT REPORTER: Sorry. It's right
when you get there that it breaks up. "Unfortunately,
like the last case?"

MS. GRABEL: The same -- we need to get the
ad to the newspapers the same day we file the application
so that we're able -- hoping we'll be able to work with
you, Mr. Chairman, to get the notice of hearing finalized
and docketed that day, the 21st.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. You need final
notice of hearing by 11-217?

MS. GRABEL: Correct. And we are also,
just as a courtesy, going to publish in the Arizona
Bilingual since so many people in this area are
Spanish-speaking. It will not be within the 10 days
after the filing, but because it's a courtesy, we don't
think that that's important.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. So the second
publication will occur greater than 30 days but less than
60 days from the notice -- from when the notice is
published; correct?

MS. GRABEL: Second publication, what do
you mean?

CHMN STAFFORD: Right. The rules require
two publications in a paper of general circulation;

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

correct?

MS. GRABEL: Correct.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. So both of those
have to occur before -- 30 days before the hearing date
itself.

MS. GRABEL: Correct. Within 10 days, I
believe, after filed. And so we will have those done.
The Territorial will be published on the 26th and the
28th. And the Review will be published on the 26th and
the 30th. And both of those meet the statutory
deadlines.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Excellent.

Now, one of your exhibits is for the signs
and the locations of the signs. I think I counted 16 of
them?

MS. GRABEL: Correct.

CHMN STAFFORD: And then you'll be doing
outreach on social media as well?

MS. GRABEL: Well, we have I think it's a
Facebook page. And we'll host ads on Facebook the week
of 11-24, 12-8, and 1-5.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And the affected
jurisdictions are Pima and Cochise County and Arizona
State Land Department?

MS. GRABEL: Correct. And then we also

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025

have the cities of Benson and Tucson.

CHMN STAFFORD: So they will -- they'll
receive notice by certified mail.

Okay. So the hearing, we're looking at the
hearing's to be held January 12th through the 16th at the
Tucson DoubleTree Hilton?

MS. GRABEL: Correct.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. And you'll have
lodging for the out-of-town committee members?

MS. GRABEL: We will. At the same hotel.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Now, are you doing
that where you reserve an entire block and then they
can -- committee members can have a room if they need?
Or if they're going to be -- that you wait and hear back
to see if they're going to need a room?

MS. GRABEL: I'm going to ask Colin to
address that because SWCA is arranging the
accommodations.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.

MR. AGNER: Chairman Stafford, we will go
ahead and reserve the rooms for the committee members
ahead of time, and then we will provide them that
confirmation information. And then should they choose to
stay at the hotel, they will have a room already arranged
for them.

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025 11

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Great. All right.
All right. And then -- okay.

And then you'll have Peaks Audio for the
A/V requirements so we'll have the tablets and be able to
handle all of that stuff?

MS. GRABEL: Exactly. They're the experts.

CHMN STAFFORD: Excellent. Excellent.

Now, how's the -- how far is the hearing venue from the
site?

MS. GRABEL: I don't know the answer to
that. Doug, Colin, can you answer?

MR. AGNER: I don't -- Chairman Stafford, I
don't have the exact mileage on me. If I had to
approximate, I would say it's probably roughly around
20 miles away from the very western portion. So because
of the length of the gen-tie, should the committee elect
to take a tour, we anticipate it would take a significant

amount of time to do so just given the length of the

line.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. All right. And
then -- but this section of the route has been -- has it
been toured before? Has any of this -- in the prior

certification proceeding, do you know, Ms. Grabel?
MS. GRABEL: I don't know if this portion
of the line was toured before, but it's an upgrade of an

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025 12

existing WAPA line that was extensively studied during
the NEPA portion of the project. It was approved by
NEPA, so -- of course, we're going to have a virtual
tour.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Have a plan for a
tour by the prehearing conference, and then we'll assess
the viability and prudence of taking a physical tour, I
guess, with the members once the -- at the hearing.

Also have a draft CEC by the time of the
prehearing conference.

When is the prehearing conference scheduled
for? Tod, do you have it?

MR. BREWER: I do, Mr. Chairman. That is
December 29 at 10 o'clock.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. 1Is there any pending
litigation on this line?

MS. GRABEL: There is not.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. So I guess we'll do
public comment the standard at 5:30 p.m. on the first day
of the hearing.

Do you anticipate much public comment in
this?

MS. GRABEL: I do not know at this point.
SWCA does really good outreach for starting our open
houses, so I'll be better able to opine on that when we

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025 13

meet for the prehearing conference. I know the team's
done a really nice job with stakeholders, and the
stakeholders are in support of it.

CHMN STAFFORD: The section that's before
the committee for this particular matter is going to be a
section of the line that was supposed to be owned by
WAPA?

MS. GRABEL: Correct.

CHMN STAFFORD: It's an existing WAPA line
that's going to be upgraded? Is that --

MS. GRABEL: That's correct -- to a
double-circuit 345/500kv.

CHMN STAFFORD: I think that -- that should
kind of tone down the -- the impact should be less
because it's an existing line that it's going to replace.

MS. GRABEL: And I know -- the team, even
though this is a new CEC, they work -- they have a
process where they work with the stakeholders first
before going to permitting, so they've done a really nice
job of reaching out to the landowners in this area.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. All right. And
what's the permit status for this section of the line?

MS. GRABEL: They are in the process of
getting BLM right-of-way grant amendment. And then same
thing with the Arizona State Land, rights-of-way, getting

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO.173 PREFILING CONFERENCE 11/14/2025 14

those in process. And then there might be some
additional permitting in Pima and Cochise County and some
ADOT encroachment permits.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.

MS. BELLAVIA: Chairman Stafford, can I add
a point of clarification on that?

Just to note that this right-of-way is --
that those right-of-way grants on BLM and state land are
held by WAPA, so we're working with them, but ultimately
WAPA will be responsible for amending those right-of-way
grants as needed.

CHMN STAFFORD: Okay.

MS. GRABEL: Thanks, Cara.

MS. BELLAVIA: One other thing. I did go
look -- back to your original question, if you don't
mind, about distance from the hotel, the venue, to the
western end of the line. It looks like it's about 30
miles to the western end.

I think Colin referred to it as a gen-tie,
which it's not. It's a new -- it's a transmission line
grid to grid, not related to generation.

So just two points of clarification.

CHMN STAFFORD: What was the filing fee for
this, Ms. Grabel?

MS. GRABEL: $2,500.

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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CHMN STAFFORD: Okay. Now, let's see, the
Commission is obligated by statute to pay the cost of
reporting and transcribing any application hearing as
well as the actual and necessary expenses incurred by the
committee members in connection with their participation
in the committee meetings from the filing fee. Costs and
fees exceeding the amount of the applicant's fee may,
with the applicant's consent, be incurred by the
committee and charged to the applicant.

Does the applicant consent to pay the
Commission those costs in excess of the filing fee?

MS. GRABEL: It does.

CHMN STAFFORD: Now, let's see, we'll have
the three-day turnaround transcripts after the hearing.

Were there any other issues we need to
cover?

MS. GRABEL: I do not believe so.

CHMN STAFFORD: Is there anything else we
need, Tod?

MR. BREWER: I don't believe so,
Mr. Chairman. Thank you.

CHMN STAFFORD: All right. Jennifer, do
you have everything you need?

THE COURT REPORTER: I do. Thank you.

CHMN STAFFORD: Thank you. All right.

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC 602.266.6535
www.glennie-reporting.com Phoenix, AZ
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LS CASE NO. 173 PREFILING CONFERENCE

Thank you very much. With that, we are adjourned.

11/14/2025

(Proceedings concluded at 11:14 a.m.)

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES,
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STATE OF ARIZONA )

)
COUNTY OF MARICOPA )

BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings were
taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of my skill and ability; that the proceedings
were taken down by me in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under my direction.

I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in the
outcome hereof.

I CERTIFY that I have complied with the ethical
obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F) (3) and
ACJA 7-206(J) (1) (g) (1) and (2).

Dated at Phoenix, Arizona, November 14, 2025.

Mdé@mo

JENNIFER HONN, RPR
Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50885

I CERTIFY that GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC, has
complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
ACJA 7-206(J) (1) (

hsa ) i

GLENNIE REPORTING SERVICES, LLC
Arizona Registered Firm
No. R1035
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